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 Stakeholder FAQs 
For the new Pathways contract 

Question Answer 

Why the change? 

Nelson Marlborough Health (NMH) conducted a review of our mental 
health and addiction (MHA) service system in 2017 with an intent to 
modernise our health care service provision. This identified that our 
previous model needed significant changes. Under the Government 
Rules of Procurement, a contractual and service delivery change of 
this magnitude meant NMH had to use an open tender process. 

What was the tender 
process? 

NMH, after advising current mental health and addiction service 
providers of their intention in 2017, went to public tender for most of 
their existing residential and community support services in July 2018. 
An evaluation panel including clinical and consumer representatives, 
external, Māori and state sector representation and NMH staff 
reviewed the seven proposals received. 
 
The process was put on hold until the Government had an 
opportunity to consider the findings of 'He Ara Oranga – the report of 
the Government’s Inquiry into Mental Health and Addiction.' 
 
After careful consideration of He Ara Oranga and the Government’s 
response to it, NMH resumed the process and commenced 
negotiations with Pathways, who received the highest weighted score 
by our panel.  
 
The probity of the process was overseen by independent auditors, 
McHale Group, to ensure all providers were treated fairly. 

Who has been awarded the 
contract and when do they 
start? 

NMH is pleased to announce that Pathways, who received the highest 
weighted score by our panel, has been contracted to provide 
integrated and responsive recovery support services, following our 
procurement process.   
 
Pathways is a community focused organisation based in both small 
and large locations across New Zealand. Pathways has a solid 
reputation for providing innovative, contemporary community-based 
mental health, addiction and wellbeing support services for more 
than 30 years. Pathways is passionate about supporting people to live 
well in their community and does so by working closely with them and 
their whānau, using evidence-based practice. To find out more about 
Pathways, visit their website: www.pathways.co.nz  
 
Pathways will start establishing themselves in the region in October, 
commencing work to ensure the smooth transition of current service 
provision on 1 February next year (2020). The contract is for an initial 
5 year period.   
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When will clients be told 
about the change? 

NMH care managers should work with the support teams to distribute 
the letters in person from Monday 19 August if possible. We will send 
out letters informing all clients who do not have a care manager of 
the changes from Wednesday 21 August.  

Who will answer any 
questions clients have 

Remember the process aims to create better services for our tangata 
whaiora. Our job is to support and reassure people using our services 
who are experiencing these anxieties. Please provide answers as you 
know them to the client. If you don't know the answer, please try to 
find out by looking at these FAQs and the consumer information pack 
or speaking to your manager.  

Why didn't some providers 
get selected? 

Nelson Marlborough Health went through an open, competitive 
tendering process, to identify the organisations we believe are best 
able to deliver the new service for the next five years. Our evaluation 
panel (made up of clinical, consumer, external and state sector 
representation) gave Pathways a higher score than any of the other 
proposals we received. 

How about existing 
services? 

The only services affected by these changes are the current 
community support services and housing and recovery type services 
provided by Mental Health Support Solutions (MHSS), Gateway 
Housing Trust and Emerge Aotearoa. We will work with the current 
providers to ensure that we have a detailed and robust transition 
process, to facilitate continuity of support service provision for our 
clients and whānau. As part of this, we are working with them to 
extend their current contracts until the end of January 2020, to allow 
for a smooth transition of services to new provider Pathways.  

When will the change take 
place? 

We are working with all existing providers to ensure business as usual 
until the end of January 2020. Pathways will start establishing 
themselves in the region in October, to ensure the smooth transition 
of current service provision on 1 February next year.  

What will happen to staff 
jobs in existing providers? 

All staff employed by affected service providers will be offered the 
opportunity to apply for positions within Pathways. All of these 
applicants will receive an interview. Pathways will commence 
recruitment activities in October 2019. 

Will any services end before 
the start date of the new 
services 

NMH is working with the current providers and the new providers to 
ensure a smooth transfer of services, to ensure that service disruption 
is kept to a minimum. At this stage, we do not expect any services to 
end before new services start. 

Who will tell families of 
clients 

Where NMH has access to email databases and similar, NMH will 
inform families of clients at the same time that clients are informed. 
We will also keep Supporting Families in Nelson and Marlborough 
aware of the changes, so they are able to assist clients. If you have 
contact information for client's whanau, and the client supports 
involving their whanau in their care, please make the client 
information pack accessible for them. 
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What will the transition 
period/plan look like and 
when will this happen 

The transition period will commence in October when Pathways begin 
establishing themselves in the Top of the South. Pathways first 
priority as they establish a base in our community will be to connect 
with the many people and organisations that make up the mental 
health and addiction sector, to ensure a smooth transition. Every 
person using affected services will be directly contacted by Pathways 
before 1 February 2020. 

Are there going to be any 
clinical staff required in the 
new contract? 

Pathways will be looking for experienced, passionate clinically trained 
staff to hold leadership positions. All staff employed by the current 
providers of mental health services and affected by these changes, 
will be offered the opportunity to apply for positions with Pathways. 
All of these applicants will receive an interview.  

How many beds are going 
to be provided for in the 
new contract?  

The new service model follows best-practice evidence, which 
highlights the benefits to people of living as independently as they are 
able.  At least 46 beds will be provided for in the new service for the 
first year, with four of those beds planned to transition to provide 
respite services by the second year. As we recognise that this is less 
beds than we currently have, flexible funding has been allocated in 
the contract to ensure individual transition and housing support is 
provided to anyone being supported into a more independent living 
situation than they currently have.  

Will there be less support 
services than now 

The support services model will look slightly different to what we 
have now, however overall support provision will be maintained, with 
the addition of a respite service (although the respite facility may be 
run as a housing and recovery service in the first year to assist in the 
ease of transition). There will also be housing coordination support, 
medication runs and support will be provided 7 days a week 8am-
8pm. More information will be provided about the new services as 
Pathways establish themselves in our region. 

Will Pathways be using the 
same sites for their services 
as the existing providers. 

We are working with Pathways and the current providers to ensure 
that we have a detailed and robust transition process. If any sites are 
changing we will communicate with all affected parties.  

Are current residents going 
to be moved out before the 
handover date / on the 
date / after the date?  

A project group will be established to oversee the transition, made up 
of NMH and Pathways staff, existing providers and clinical, 
community and peer representative to develop a detailed plan for the 
transition of services.  
 
If the resident might need to move as part of the transition, Pathways 
will be in touch with the resident and their care team well before any 
shift will need to occur. Pathways will be exploring all options to try to 
keep the transition as smooth as possible. 
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Will the transition mean 
that current providers 
might need to keep 
providing some sort of 
service until everyone is 
moved? 

We expect that the current providers will be providing services until 
the end of January 2020. Flexible funding has been allocated in the 
contract for Pathways to use to ensure individual transition and 
housing support is provided to anyone being supported into a more 
independent living situation. 

Who decides what support 
going forwards 

The decision making process of deciding what support is required will 
not change, please continue your usual practices. 

What happens to new 
referrals 

For any new referrals that are likely to require services beyond 
January 2020, please include in your referral documentation the 
standard letter notifying of change and the Pathways flyer. 

How will this affect clients 
Clients will still receive the support they need and individual transition 
plans will be created for each client to ensure a smooth transition. 

Is this cost savings 
No, the decision to go to tender was made after a number of service 
reviews that identified that we needed to change a number of aspects 
in our current contracting models. 

Will the current providers 
keep any services after 1 
February? 

Yes, Gateway Housing Trust will continue to provide respite services 
in Blenheim at Hapai Te Ora and a day activity centre in Motueka at 
The Shed. 

How will I be informed as 
things progress 

You can sign-up to receive general community updates about the 
transition by entering in your details to the sign up page 
https://www.pathways.co.nz/contact/nm 

 

https://www.pathways.co.nz/contact/nm

